1966

Smith Brothers Lumber Company v. William E. Johnson and His Wife, Lila Johnson : Appellant's Brief

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action brought by the Plaintiff-Respondent to enforce a Mechanics Lien against a subsequent purchaser of real property without notice.

DISPOSITION OF LOWER COURT

The case was tried to the Court. From a judgment for the Plaintiff, Defendants appeal.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendants seek a reversal of the judgment and a judgment in their favor as a matter of law.

THE FACTS

The Plaintiff, a Utah Corporation, engaged in the business of marketing building supplies, furnished building supplies from materials in stock to L. Edward Skabelund, for the purpose of making certain improvements on the Skabelund property in Logan. Delivery of the materials was made between March 5, 1963 and August 6, 1964, which was the last of such deliveries. Mr. Skabelund being a carpenter by trade did the work himself after hours and on holidays, and in the course of the construction incorporated all of the materials furnished him by the Plaintiff of the value of \$1,927.16, for which he paid the sum of \$1,270.11, leaving \$657.05 due and owing at the time of the commencement of this action.

On June 29, 1964, William E. Johnson, one of the Defendants, purchased the property on which the improvements had been made without actual knowledge of the outstanding debt.

On October 7, 1964, the Plaintiff filed a "Notice of Intention to Claim a Lien", it being 62 days after the last delivery of materials to the building site.

The Plaintiff thereupon brought this action to enforce the supposed lien which it had filed notice of intention to claim.

ARGUMENT

POINT NO. 1: THE COURT ERRED IN FINDING THAT THE PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT WAS AN "ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR" FOR THE PURPOSE OF SECTION 38-1-7, U.C.A., 1953, AND AS SUCH HAD EIGHTY DAYS WITHIN WHICH TO FILE NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CLAIM A MECHANICS LIEN.

POINT NO. 1A: SECTION 38-1-3, U.C.A., 1953, (THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN) CREATES FOUR CLASSES OF POSSIBLE LIENORS: 1. CONTRACTORS, 2. SUBCONTRACTORS, 3. LABORERS BY THE DAY OR PIECE, 4. MATERIALMEN.

According to Section 38-1-7, U.C.A., 1953, there are three distinct periods limiting the time allowed different classes of lienors to file a notice of intention to claim a lien.

1. Eighty days after the completion of the "Original contract".

2. Sixty days after the last material delivered or labor done.

3. Sixty days after the original contract is completed.

Limitation No. 3 pertains to those operating at the insistence of the original contractor and includes "a subcontractor or any person furnishes labor or materials" . . . Limitation No. 1 pertains to "original con-

tractors". If the total scheme of classification of possible lienors contemplates only "original contractors" and "subcontractors" then the limitation No. 2 is a useless and confusing provision.

Section 38-1-3, U.C.A., 1953 (THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN) defines not two but four classes of lienors and says "CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS (2) and all persons PERFORMING LABOR (4) upon or FURNISHING MATERIALS (3) to be used in, the construction . . . shall have a lien on the property . . ." When we superimpose on this section the three distinct periods of limitation for filing (as per Section 7) we find the 60 day after last delivery period a meaningful and sensible provision. If we, however, disregard the classification and say that groups (3) and (4) do not exist separately but are only repetitive definitions of Contractors and Subcontractors 60 days after last delivery as well as the order of satisfaction (as per section 14) and the priority of claims (as per Section 6), becomes not only meaningless and of no effect, but also senseless and confusing of the whole scheme of liens and lien holders as described by the other sections of the chapter. Unless we want to walk blindly through the remainder of the sections we must affirm the existence of the traditional group of lien holders widely and commonly known as "Materialmen" who supply materials from their stocks at regular prices AND without bidding or any of the other normal attendant characteristics of

a genuine contractor's contract.

The classes so set forth by this section is carried consistently through the sections of the chapter which have relevance to the classes of lienors (Section 3), priority of claims (Section 6), order of satisfaction (Section 14), the equal footings of materialmens and laborers liens (Section 10).

Section 38-1-6, U.C.A., 1953, clearly designates four classes of people eligible for the benefits of the chapter of the code “ . . . due to an ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR (1) from the owner of any property subject to lien under this chapter shall be valid as against any lien of a SUBCONTRACTOR (2) or MATERIALMAN (3) and no such attachment, garnishment or levy upon any money due to a SUBCONTRACTOR (2) or MATERIALMAN (3) from the CONTRACTOR (1) shall be valid as against any lien of a LABORER EMPLOYED BY THE DAY OR PIECE (4).

Section 38-1-3, U.C.A., 1953 contemplates the identical scheme of classification: “CONTRACTORS (1), SUBCONTRACTORS (2), and all persons PERFORMING LABOR (4), or FURNISHING MATERIALS (3) to be used in, the construction . . .”

Section 38-1-14, U.C.A., 1953 also re-identifies the classes for the purpose of order in satisfaction of decree: “In every case in which liens are claimed against the same property the decree shall provide for their satis-

faction in the following order: 1. SUBCONTRACTORS who are laborers or mechanics who are working for the day or piece.”

The Idaho Code follows the same scheme but is somewhat clearer in making the distinctions. In Section 45-5-12 Judgment to declare priority, (this is comparable to Section 38-1-14, U.C.A., 1953).

1. All laborers, other than contractors or subcontractors.
2. All Materialmen other than contractors or subcontractors.
3. Subcontractors.
4. The original Contractor.

Certainly all of these (as in the Utah code) possible lienors have a relation which is contractual in nature. The conclusion from both Codes is obvious, that all those who have contractual relations are not either Contractors or Subcontractors, there are two other groups, Laborers (defined as those working by the day or piece in Utah, 42 Ida 391, 246 P 962) and Materialman (one who furnishes materials to be used). Since all have contractual relations of a sort the dividing factor is the nature and extent of that relation, and based on that distinction some will be classified as “Contractors” and some as “Materialmen”, though both are furnishing materials and both have some sort of contractual re-

lation. "The evidence on behalf of the Gem State Lumber Company is sufficient to support a finding that it was a materialman and entitled to a lien as such. "Supra" . . . We must then look at the contractual relation between the parties to see if they are those of a "Contractor" or merely those of a "Materialman".

The only substantial difference between the Utah statute and the Idaho statute is that the priorities are re-arranged, the classification has remained consistent. Under the Utah statute the materialman and the subcontractor are given equal priorities, while the laborer is given first priority.

Sections 14-2-1, Idaho Code, 14-2-2, Idaho Code Bond Stats. talk of materialmen.

In the second paragraph of the seventh section of this chapter, there is a separation of those who are operating at the insistence of the original contractor into two groups, SUBCONTRACTORS, and ANY PERSON WHO FURNISHES LABOR OR MATERIALS AT THE INSTANCE AND REQUEST OF AN ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR. Even on the subcontractor level (or on the level of those operating at the insistence of the original contractor) there is a distinction between those on contract (technical Subcontractors) and those working at the insistence of the Contractor but not on "contract" to do so (who are laborers by day or piece or material suppliers). For the purpose of setting periods of

filing of limitation both of these categories are grouped together “then such SUBCONTRACTORS or PERSON’S lien rights, . . . are extended so as to make the final date for the filing of a notice of intention to hold and claim a lien sixty days after completion of the original contract of the original contractor”. Had there been no contemplation of separate categories for “Materialmen” and Laborers by the day or piece” (as opposed to Subcontractors) the articulation of this section would not have shown such careful protection of the rights of this other group of furnishers or labor and materials.

The definitions in Section 2 are useful in understanding the intent of the distinction in Sections 19, 21 and 22, but we contend should not be allowed to destroy the meaning and internal consistency of the remaining and most important sections of the chapter (and those which are uniquely in point in this litigation).

Much of the difficulty in interpreting what the definitions in Section 2 mean and were meant to effect might hinge around what was meant by the words “by contract”. If the legislature meant a traditional building or construction contract with a customer discrete job to be done at a certain total price and not just any obligation which might expressly or impliedly arise from an off the shelf dispensing of individual items for use in construction, then Contractor as defined in Section 2

would be consistent not only with Sections 19, 21 and 22, but with the whole chapter, in that it would allow for the existence of MATERIALMEN and LABORERS BY THE DAY OR PIECE. And if the wording "all other persons doing work or furnishing materials shall be deemed subcontractors", was intended to mean all other persons doing work or furnishing materials by contract express or implied "at the insistence of an original contractor, shall be deemed Subcontractors, then Subcontractors, for the same reasons as stated above would be a useful category, consistent with not just a part but all of the chapter.

POINT NO. 1B: SECTION 38-1-7, U.C.A., 1953 (NOTICE OF CLAIM - CONTENTS RECORDING), CLASSIFIES LIENORS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 3, AND ALLOWS MATERIALMEN SIXTY DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THE LAST DELIVERY OF MATERIALS TO FILE A NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CLAIM A LIEN.

The wording of Section 7 illustrates its consistency with the classification scheme of Sections 3, 6, 10 and 14.

PERIOD	CLASS TO WHICH IT IS APPLICABLE
1. 80 days after the completion of the original contract	Original Contractors (those contractors who are operating under a specific contract directly with the owner.)

- | | |
|---|--|
| 2. 60 days after last material delivered or labor done | MATERIALMEN AND LABORERS (Laborers who work by the day or piece, and materialmen who furnish goods directly to the owner but are not on "contractors" analogous to working by the day or piece by laborers.) |
| 3. 60 days after the contract by the original contractor has been completed | SUBCONTRACTORS (those who labor or materials or both at the insistence of the original contractor or are on a specific contract to do so.) |

POINT NO. 1 C: THE PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT IS A "MATERIALMAN" AND NOT AN ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR FOR THE PURPOSES OF SECTION SEVEN.

One furnishing, under a contract with the owner, materials to be used in the construction of a building is a materialman and not an original contractor within the provision of the mechanics lien law relating to the time for filing a lien. SPARKS v. BUTTE COUNTY GRAVEL MIN. CO. (1880) 55 Cal 389; Heacock Sash and Door Co. v. Weatherford (1931) 135 or 153, 294 P 344.

141 ALR 324 b. FURNISHING MATERIALS ONLY

"Generally, one who merely furnishes materials to the OWNER or a contractor is a materialman, and not

a contractor or a subcontractor, within the meaning of mechanic's lien laws.''

Am Jur 36 Mechanics Liens Section 52 MATERIAL-MEN

The right to assert a mechanics lien is now generally extended to materialmen or THOSE PEOPLE WHO SUPPLY MATERIALS FOR THE STRUCTURE AND HAVE NO OTHER CONNECTION WITH THE WORK.

36 Am Jur (1966) supplement page 7 to supplement note 20 page 47 "Nor is one who merely furnishes material a "contractor" within the meaning of mechanics lien laws.

36 Am Jur Section 165 WHO IS A "CONTRACTOR" A "Contractor" within the provisions of a mechanics lien statute with limit liens of subcontractors, laborers or materialmen for material or labor furnished to the contractor to the amount earned but unpaid on the contract, or which give such liens by subrogation, IS ONE WHO WOULD BE CHARACTERIZED AS A CONTRACTOR IN THE COMMON SPEECH OF MEN. AND WE THINK NOT JUST A BUILDING SUPPLIES CUSTOMER.

HINN HAMMOND LUMBER CO. v ELSON 171 Cal 570 154 P 12

That literally, a subcontractor is one who agrees with

another to perform a part or all of the obligation which the second party owes by contract to a third party, but that the word has much narrower meaning in mechanics lien law which divides the liens into four classes, to-wit, laborers, materialmen, subcontractors and original contractors, that the term subcontractor as so used must be determined by reference to this classification and to the subject to which it relates, and embraces all persons who agree with the original contractor to furnish the material and construct for him on the premises some part of the structure which the original contractor had agreed to erect for the owner, and that persons who merely furnish materials to the contractors to be used and which are used, in the construction of the building come within the second class — as materialmen.

FORSEBERG v. KOSS CONSTR. CO. (1934) 218 IOWA 818, 252 NW 258

One who delivered sand was not a subcontractor but a materialman.

STAPLES v ADAMS, PAYNE AND GLEAVES (1914) CCA 4th) 215 F 322, in reference to one who furnished materials to a building contractor it was stated that whether he was a subcontractor was doubtful, that there was no attempt to prove the existence of a contract entered into any time, or for any definite quantity of materials, that nothing more was shown than an ordinary running account between a dealer and his

customer, that the building contractor, each of whose purchases was a separate transaction, was free, at any time, to purchase elsewhere, and that is as the Court supposed, there was a clear distinction between a subcontractor and a materialman, it was unable to see that the furnisher of the materials was anything more than a materialman. "Holding that one who furnished materials to a building contractor on a running account did not serve in time the required notice to the owner under a statute making the latter personally liable to a subcontractor to the extent of the amount due from the owner to the original contractor, the Court said that he was nothing more than a materialman.

WILSON ET AL v. HIND ET AL (1896) 113 Cal 357, 45 P 685.

1. A person contracting to furnish material for a building, such as doors, sashes, blinds, etc., which, instead of manufacturing to order, he purchased ready made is a materialman only."

FISHER ET AL V. TOMLINSON ET AL 1901 40 Or 111, 60 P 390, 66 P 696 at 697 . . . His letters to Plaintiffs to the effect that he had secured the contract to furnish all the shop work, sash, doors, glass, etc., do not intimate that he was to place in the building, as a part thereof any of the material ordered. He was therefore as the evidence clearly shows, only a materialman . . .

FINLAY V. TAGHOLM 1911 62 Wash 341, 113 P 1083, 1084.

“The third point urged, that the appellant is a subcontractor, is without merit. If one who furnishes the sashes, doors, and glass for a building is a subcontractor, every materialman would fall in that class, and such construction would nullify the plain terms of the statute.

STEPHENS LUMBER CO V. TOWNSEND-STARK CORP. (1924) 228 Mich 182, 1999 NW 706, 201 NW 213. A lumber company doing no work on the premises, but only furnishing lumber and door frames and window frames and other things which it carried in stock and did not have to manufacture according to the building contractor's specifications, is a materialman, and not a contractor, and therefore, entitled to a lien without filing the affidavit required of contractors.

FORMAN V. ST. GERMAIN (1900) 81 Minn 26, 83 NW 438. Owner ordered glass delivered and installed by the furnisher was not a contractor but a materialman.

CONCLUSION

There has been no assertion that the Plaintiff made any improvements on the materials to make them more suitable for the particular job in which they were to be used, or that he aided in their installation in the building. In fact there is nothing to indicate that the relation of the Plaintiff and the Defendants was any more than a

customer or purchaser and seller. The agreement entered into by the parties was the kind that any casual customer implies or expresses, and the Defendant was not bound by it to continue buying from the Plaintiff, he could have at any point ceased his purchases and become the customer of any of a variety of other firms. The Plaintiff is at most a supplier of materials and as such did not meet the time requirements exacted of his class of lienors for filing a notice of intention to claim a lien.

For these reasons and those stated in the body of the argument we pray the Court for a reversal of the judgment entered below.