1967

Smith Brothers Lumber Company v. William E. Johnson and His Wife, Lila Johnson : Respondent's Brief

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

ARGUMENT

POINT NO. 1. THE COURT CORRECTLY HELD THAT THE PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT WAS AN ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR UNDER THE PROVIS-

IONS OF 38-1-2, UCA, 1953 AND AS SUCH HAD 80 DAYS WITHIN WHICH TO FILE NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CLAIM A MECHANIC'S LIEN.

A: Respondent believes that Section 38-1-2, UCA, 1953 and which reads as follows, is controlling as to whether or not it, claimant, is an original contractor, to-wit:

“Contractors” and “subcontractors” defined. — Whoever shall do work or furnish materials by contract, express or implied, with the owner, as in this chapter provided, shall be deemed an original contractor, and all other persons doing work or furnishing materials shall be deemed subcontractors.”

Following the statute, under Comparable Provision, it is pointed out that Iowa Code Ann., Sec. 572.1, Subd 2 (“Subcontractor” includes every person furnishing materials or performing labor, except those having contracts directly with owner, his agent or trustee). There is then cited *Holbrook v. Webster's Inc.* 7 U. (2) 148,320 P. 2d 661 from which it appears that the answer to the question in this lawsuit has been indicated by this court. In this case, at page 662, after quoting Sec. 38-1-2 and referring to Sec. 38-1-7 entitled Notice of Claim—Contents—Contents—Recording, had this to say: “The trial court did not indicate in its Summary Judgment whether or not it found that Elvin Coon was the owner of the real estate. If such fact were unequivocally established, then appellant was necessarily an original contractor.” It further appeared that Webster's, Inc. furnished the building materials to Elvin Coon, et ux, who as mortgagor, gave a mortgage to Prudential Savings & Loan Ass'n. who in turn assigned the mortgage to Ward C. Holbrook, plaintiff, and in which

mortgage, he, the mortgagor, recited that, "the mortgagor is lawfully seized of the premises in fee simple and has good and lawful right to mortgage, sell and convey the same." And the holding by this court was then to the effect that having sold and delivered materials to the owner of the property, Webster's Inc. was, therefore, an original contractor and entitled to 80 days within which to file its lien under the provisions of 38-1-7. In fact, *Holbrook v. Webster's, Inc.* is cited under said Sec. 38-1-7.

Following Sec. 38-1-2, attention is directed to 36 Am. Jur. 46, *Mechanic's Lien*, Sec. 51 wherein it is stated:

"In order to constitute a lien claimant an original contractor, there must exist or have existed a contract, either express or implied, between such lien claimant and the owner of the property"

citing *Prouty Lbr. & Box Co. v. McGuirk*, 156 OR 418, 66 P (2d) 481, 68 P (2d) 473, citing RCL. And said section further provides:

"One who deals with the party in interest who is the source of authority for the improvement is contracting with the owner, and not a subcontractor, but is an original contractor"

citing *Jordan v. Natrona Lbr. Co.* 52 Wyo. 393, 75 P (2d) 378, citing RLC. See also *Freidenbloom v. Pecos Valley Lbr. Co.*, 35 N.M. 154, 290 P 796, 798; *Mitchell v. McCutcheon*, 33 N.M. 78, 260 P 1086; *Colorado Iron Works v. Rickenberg*, 4 Idaho 262, 38 P 651, *Gray v. New Mexico Pumice Store Co.*, 15 N.M. 478, 110 P 603, and other cases

cited at page 385 of the Jordan case, supra. See also Words & Phrases Permanent Edition 30, at page 298-299. Additional cases are also cited under ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR in the 1966 Cumulative Annual Pocket to Vol. 30, including Lakeview Drilling Co. v. Stark 310 P (2d) 627, 630, 210 Ore. 306; Anderson v. Chambliss, 262 P (2d), 298, 299, 199 Or. 400. It will be observed from a reading of the case cited that decisions based on statutes such as 38-1-2 are in harmony with the holding in the Utah case of Holbrook v. Webster's Inc., supra.

B: Sec. 38-1-3, Those entitled to lien—so far as applicable to the case at bar provides:

“Contractors, subcontractors, and all persons performing labor on, or furnishing materials to be used in, the construction or alteration of or addition to, or repair of, any building, structure or improvement upon land;”

and then it further provides, “shall have a lien upon the property upon or concerning which they have rendered service, performed labor or furnished materials, for the value of the service rendered, labor performed or materials furnished by each respectively, *whether at the instance of the owner or of any other person acting by his authority as agent, contractor or otherwise.*”

The purpose of the lien statute is to protect those therein enumerated who have added directly to the value of the property by performance of labor or adding materials and is designed to prevent the landowner from taking the benefit of improvements without paying therefor.

Stanton Transportation Co. v. Davis 9 U (2) 184, 341 P (2d) 207; King Bros., Inc. v. Utah Dry Kiln Co., 13 U (2d) 339, 374 P (2) 254.

I have italicised part of the statute above quoted to point out that the statute does not specifically "define," "classify," "contemplate" or "create four classes"—contractors, subcontractors, "LABORERS BY THE DAY OR PIECE" and "MATERIALMEN" as such. To so contend is simply adding two additional designations or classifications by counsel which are not provided for in the statute and which is misleading; because the statute does not so provide does not render it either "ambiguous" or "misleading." The language simply provides for "or covers them" each of whom are protected and may be entitled to a lien by complying with the provisions thereof.

Nor does Sec. 38-1-14 providing for the order of satisfaction in the decree provide any inconsistency in providing for the following order: (1) "Subcontractors who are laborers or mechanics working by the day or piece, but without furnishing materials therefor." It covers those persons, laborers or mechanics, who so work at the request of the subcontractors. A subcontractor under our statute, 38-1-2, is one who does work at the instance of the original contractor for it states that "all other persons doing work or furnishing materials shall be deemed subcontractors." Here there is no subcontractor involved. Respondent would come under (3) of said section were others (1) and (2) involved or not. Respondent sees no inconsistency in this classification. It does not attempt to change the time allowed for claiming liens under 38-1-7.

Undoubtedly the State has a right to provide for the sub-contractor-order of satisfying claimants. This is consistent with the holdings generally, for the persons designated in (1) and (2) could not exceed the claim of the original contractor against the owner. See 57 CJS *Mechanic's Liens*, Sec. 319 and also *Garland v. Bear Lake and River Water Works & Irr. Co.* 34 P 368, 9 Utah 350. 40 CJ page 492, note 7. The mere fact, however, that (2) of said section uses the work "materialman" does not preclude claimant herein from being an "original contractor." Such a classification is logical. Otherwise, as pointed out in *Colorado Iron Works v. Riekenberg (Idaho)* 38 P 651 at page 652 the situation could become ridiculous, because as stated therein, suppose A, the owner, contracts with B to do all the construction work for \$5000.00 and then contracts with C to furnish all the material for the building for \$10,000.00. Then, if as is claimed by the appellant, B is the only "original contractor" and C is only a "materialman" and both find it necessary to file liens for their security, what sort of a position are they in? The amount of C's security from B cannot exceed the contract price B is to receive for erecting the building and that only equals one-half of the contract price agreed to be paid by the owner to C for material used in constructing the building. This case also holds: "A materialman, who contracts directly with the owner, and has no privity of interest or contract with the contractor for construction, is an original contractor, under the statute of Idaho, and as such is entitled to 60 days provided by statute within which to file his lien." *Fitzgerald v. Neal, (Ore.)* 231 P 645. See syllabus 14 page 646. "The term, "subcontractor," from its very definition, means one who has

contracted with the original contractor for the performance of all or a part of the work or services which such contractor has himself contracted to perform.”

At page 6 of brief, appellant refers to Sec. 45-5-12 Idaho Code (Judgment to Declare Priority) and then states that it is “comparable” to Sec. 38-1-14 and then cites *Riggins v. Perkins et al* (Idaho) 246 P 962. Facts in this case disclose that Perkins, owner, entered into a contract with Arco Mill & Bldg. Co. by the terms of which it agreed to “provide all the materials and to perform all the work in erecting the dwelling according to plans and specifications.” Riggins brought suit to foreclose 8 labor liens (himself and 7 assignors) for work done on the dwelling. The court held against him because he did not deal direct with Perkins and that his contractor, Arco Mill & Bldg. Co. was statutory agent for the purpose of giving a lien to persons employed by it direct, but not for the purpose of making a laborer employed by it the direct contract—employee of the owner. See discussion (2) first column at page 963. No one disagreed that the defendant, Brownell Bros. Co. was entitled to a lien because all of its dealings were had with the owner’s contractor, Arco Mill & Bldg. Co., but the classification given was disputed. The court held that as to the materials it furnished consisting of paints, hardware and the like in the sum of \$410.00 it was entitled to a lien under classification 2 of the statute, but that as to the heating plant and its installation it was entitled to a lien under classification (3) as a subcontractor, and that no reasonable theory could support it as having a lien as a laborer. The decision also states that Brownell Bros. C. “had such a

contract as, if made with Perkins direct, would have made the appellant a contractor, not a materialman.” See discussion at (3) page 964. The evidence supplied by Gem State Lbr. Co. is not given. The only statement contained in the case is that which appears at top of second column page 964 and which is quoted by appellant at the top of page 7 of brief. It is clear from a reading of the case that the evidence produced by Gem State Lbr. Co. was that it furnished materials, only, at the request of the contractor, and not the owner. It is clear from the case that a labor lien under the Mechanic’s Lien statutes as to the property being constructed can exist only if *furnished* at the request of the general contractor, and that if supplied at the request of the owner, such laborer then becomes an original contractor. See syllabus 5 page 962. Nor is counsel’s statement, bottom page 5 of brief, justified by Sec. 38-1-3 when he makes the statement that it “contemplates” the classification he makes. Counsel for respondent states that the holding in the Riggins v. Perkins case, *supra*, is a decision in its favor.

It is believed that the above two paragraphs in particular and the previous pages of this brief fully answers the further contentions made by counsel on pages 7, 8 and the first half of page 9 of his brief.

C. The court correctly held plaintiff, claimant, entitled to 80 days after completion of its contract to file its Claim under the provisions of Sec. 38-1-7, the first part of which provides as follows: “Every original contractor within eighty days after completion of his contract,” and etc. . .

What else could claimant be other than an original contractor? The facts admitted are that defendant is owner, the last materials were delivered to him August 6, 1964, the lien was filed Oct. 7, 1964, well within the 80 day period, the materials went into the improvement, no other person performed labor or furnished any materials at the request of either the owner, "or any one acting under his authority as agent, contractor, or otherwise," claimant, or any other person. Claimant certainly could not be a subcontractor. The second paragraph of this section can have no application because claimant, the only person who could be an original contractor, had no dealings with any person, nor did the owner. There is no classification making any one who furnishes material, a MATERIAL-MAN. It is difficult to see how this situation makes this paragraph "a useless and confusing provision." It just has no application in the case at bar. *Jordan v. Natrona Lbr. Co.*, supra, syllabus 4 holds that lumber company that furnished materials upon open account was an original contractor as against contention that formal precise contract states exact amount of materials needed and prices to be paid was necessary and that implied contract was insufficient. It is believed that what counsel concludes is a "genuine contractor's contract" is a term of his own making and has no application. It is a common knowledge that contracts for construction are of an endless variety, and are both oral and written, express and implied, and that they cover labor or material, or both, and with all kinds of conditions and limitations.

Answering Point 1-B: Sec. 38-1-7 does not classify lienors in accordance with Sec. 38-1-3. Appellant's state-

ment that it does is entirely erroneous. As previously pointed out herein, neither of these sections CLASSIFY LEINORS. Sec. 3 sets out who is entitled to a lien, either for labor or materials "whether at the instance of the owner or of any other person acting by his authority as agent, contractor or otherwise." Section 7 makes no attempt at classification. It does not allow MATERIALMEN as such 60 days from delivery of last material to file notice of lien. The right of a person who furnishes materials depends on the kind of contract—with whom he contracts. See extensive comments in the Idaho case of Higgins v. Perkins, supra, which appellant cites and relies upon but which respondent believes is a holding in its favor. It is believed that what is here and previously stated answers fully the columns shown at pages 9 and 10 of brief.

36 Am. Jur, Mechanic's Liens, 52 Materialmen, states: "All materialmen to be entitled to a lien, must be specifically referred to within the statute, for it cannot be extended to that class by construction. Thus, materialmen are not generally within the term "sub-contractor."

See generally said Sec. 52, Material^{men}~~ism~~, which is to the same effect as 57 CJS Mechanic's Liens, Sec. 89, note 2, citing Eberle v. Drennan 40 Okla 59, 136 P 162, 51 LRA (NS) 68, to the effect that one who furnishes material to the contractor is entitled to a lien.

My main reason for referring to this comment by the text is to show that to whom liens are give liens as "materialmen" depends upon the wording of the statute

in question. It will also be observed that in some states, which is particularly true of the ~~other~~ states of California and Oregon, the statutes have been changed. The meaning of who is entitled to a machanic's lien in the State of Utah can be ascertained by a reference to the applicable statutes which appear to be Sections 38-1-2, 38-1-3 and 38-1-7. These statutes specify the persons who have a right to a mechanic's lien and those specifically not mentioned are excluded. *Holbrook v. Webster* (Utah) supra is cited under 38-1-7.

Again under Point No. 1C at page 10 of appellant's brief, he states that respondent is a "materialman" and not an "original contractor" for the purposes of Sec. 7 and cites *Sparks v. Butte County Gravel Mining Co.* (1880) 55 Cal 389 and *Heacock Sash & Door Co. v. Weatherford* (1931) 135 Or. 153, 294 P 344.

57 CJS Mechanics Liens, Sec. 86 provides: "A mechanics lien can be acquired only by a person who is within the class or one of the classes of persons to whom the lien is given by the Statute or constiitutional provision under which he claims" citing under note 24, *Riggins v. Perkins* (Idaho) 246 P 962, supra.

36 Am Jur Mechanics Liens, Sec. 52 Materialman, is to the same effect: "Materialmen, to be entitled to a lien, must be specifically referred to within the statute, for it cannot be extended to that classification" citing under note *Hiln-Hammond Lbr. Co. vs. Elsom* (1915) (Calif.) 154 P 12, and other cases.

57 CJS Mechanics Liens (Materialman) Sec. 89 provides: "While a materialman has been held not to

come within some early mechanics' lien statutes restricted to particular class of persons and not mentioning a materialman, nevertheless many statutes, especially the later ones, *expressly confer* a lien on a materialmen or a person furnishing materials," citing under note 75: Idaho Lumber & Hardware Co. v. DiGiacomo, 61 Idaho 383, 102 P (2d) 637 and Riggins v. Perkins, *supra*. Heacock Sash & Door Co. v. Weatherford (1931) 135 Or 153, 294 P 344.

The text 57 CJS Sec. 89 states: "the rights of materialmen are fixed by law, and nothing that the owner can do can change them." Utah Mechanic Lien Statutes do not expressly confer a lien on "materialmen."

It will be observed that the Sparks case, *supra*, is one of ancient vintage, the decision having been rendered 16 years before Utah became a state, and before publication of the Pacific Reports, the first volume of which appears to have been published in 1884. The case is reported in Pacific State Reports, Book 18, page 389. The statute is not quoted but from a reading of the case it would appear the decision is based upon a definite classification. From *Hiln v. Hammond Lbr. Co.*, *supra*, it would seem it is no longer the law in California.

141 ALR 323 also cites *Hiln-Hammond Lbr. Co. v. Elsom* (1915) 171 Cal. 570, 154 P 12, from which appellant quotes extensively at pages 11-12 of brief. It appears from the quote that the word "subcontractor" has a much narrower meaning in the mechanic's lien laws which divides the liens into four classes, including "materialmen," "that the term subcontractor as so used must be determined by reference to this classification and to the sub-

ject to which it relates," etc. . . Syllabus 2 indicates the decision was rendered because of the peculiar classification under the heading "materialmen." Utah statutes have no such classification. The Hiln case is also cited in *Riggins v. Perkins*, supra, at page 964 to the effect that any person who contracts direct with the owner is a contractor and not a materialman. The decision is a holding in plaintiff-respondent's favor.

Counsel then at page 11 quotes from 36 Am Jur, Sec. 52, Materialmen and refers to the Supplement page 7, supplement to note 20 page 46, from which it appears clearly that it refers to statutes having particular classifications and so is inapplicable to the case at bar. The very next paragraph then refers to Anno: 141 ALR 325, which cites *Fisher v. Tomlinson* 40 Or 111, 66 P 696 and *Heacock Sash & Door Co. v. Weatherford* 135 Or 135 294 P 344 which holds that persons who furnish materials only are not "materialmen" under statutes not having a classification to that effect. These holdings are also in plaintiff-respondent's favor.

The case of *Hiln-Hammond Co. v. Elsom* cited at page 11 of brief has already been commented on above. The statement quoted from the following case cited. *Forsberg v. Koss Constr. Co.* 218 Ia 818, 252 NW 258, is simply a statement made by the court in the course of its opinion under the Iowa Statute and can have no application to the case at bar. The next case cited, *Staples v. Adams, Payne & Gleaves* 215 F 322 to which counsel refers is simply a holding to the effect that proper notice was not served to bring the case within the peculiar provisions of the Virginia statute, the construction of which is binding

upon the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals. As to the comments made by counsel pertaining to open or running accounts making any difference, or the comments following *Wilson v. Hind*, 1896) 113 Cal. 357, 45 P 685, see *Jordan v. Natrona Lbr. Co.*, supra.

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